# AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE BROOKVILLE TEACHERS ASSOCIATION AND

THE BROOKVILLE BOARD OF EDUCATION

**JULY 1, 2023 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2026** 

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

ARTICLE	<u>DESCRIPTION</u> <u>PAGE</u>	<u>GE</u>
1	RECOGNITION AGREEMENT 1	
2	MANAGEMENT RIGHTS2	<u>.</u>
3	INDIVIDUAL AND ASSOCIATION RIGHTS 3	i
4	TEACHER CONTRACTS 5	)
5	PAYROLL PROCEDURES 7	
6	COMMITTEES 8	
7	BOARD OF EDUCATION RECORDS OF PERSONNEL/EVALUATIONS . 10	
8	BEHAVIOR MANAGEMENT12	
9	POSTING OF AVAILABLE POSITIONS/TRANSFERS13	
10	REDUCTION IN STAFF14	
11	LEAVE PROVISIONS FOR SICK LEAVE, PERSONAL LEAVE, INCLUDING ATTENDANCE INCENTIVES17	
12	SICK LEAVE BANK19	
13	LEAVES OF ABSENCE20	
14	DISTRICT POLICY/ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDELINES24	
15	PROFESSIONAL GROWTH/TUITION REIMBURSEMENT25	
16	SEVERANCE/RETIREMENT PAY/SUPER SEVERANCE26	
17	INSURANCE AND HEALTH BENEFITS28	
18	INCLUSION PROCEDURE30	
19	PLACEMENT ON SALARY SCHEDULE31	
20	TEACHER WORKDAY AND WORK YEAR32	
21	PLANNING AND CONFERENCE TIME33	
22	LOCAL PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEES34	
23	RESOLVING COMPLAINTS AGAINST TEACHERS39	
24	GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE40	
25	CONTRARY TO LAW42	
26	NEGOTIATIONS43	
27	ELIGIBILITY FOR STUDENTS OF NONRESIDENT EMPLOYEES44	
28	EXTRACURRICULAR45	
29	STRS CONTRIBUTIONS49	
	INDEX AND SALARY SCHEDULES50	

# RECOGNITION AGREEMENT

The Brookville Board of Education (hereinafter referred to as the "Board") recognizes the Brookville Teachers Association, an affiliate of OEA/NEA, (hereinafter referred to as the "Association") as the sole and exclusive bargaining agent for all certified/licensed professional personnel. The certified/licensed staff, as used herein, shall be defined as classroom teachers, librarians, special teachers (art, music, physical education, etc.), guidance counselors, speech therapists, and certified nurses who at the minimum provide half-time service to the Board and are under contract.

All sections of this Agreement that are inconsistent with Ohio law are intended to supersede Ohio law, in accordance with Chapter 4117 of the Ohio Revised Code. The parties agree that some sections of the Agreement may specifically identify certain Ohio laws that are superseded and others may not. If a section does not specifically indicate that Ohio law is superseded, that section shall nevertheless be interpreted to supersede Ohio law.

The superintendent, principals, assistant principals, school psychologist, athletic director and all others who are hired pursuant to Section 3319.02 of the Ohio Revised Code are not included in the bargaining unit described above.

#### DURATION

This agreement shall be effective July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2026 (3 Years).

# MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

The Board, by mutual agreement with the Association, commits itself to such Association recognition and other conditions of employment as incorporated in this Agreement; and the Board, on behalf of the electors of the district, retains and reserves unto itself the ultimate responsibilities for the proper management of the school district conferred upon and vested in it by the Revised Code of Ohio and Constitution of the State of Ohio and the United States, including the responsibility for, and the right:

- A. To maintain executive management and administrative control of the school system and its properties and facilities, and the professional activities of its employees as related to the conduct of school affairs.
- B. To hire all employees and, subject to the provisions of law, to determine their qualifications, and the conditions for their continued employment or their dismissal or demotion; and to promote, and transfer all such employees.
- C. To delegate authority through recognized administrative channels according to current Board Policy.
- D. To determine job schedules, the hours of employment, and the duties, responsibilities, and assignments of employees with respect thereto, and the terms and conditions of employment.
- E. To determine the size and strength of the work force.

The exercise of the foregoing powers, rights, authorities, duties, and responsibilities by the Board, the adoption of policies, rules, regulations and practices and furtherance thereof, and the use of judgment and discretion in connection therewith shall be limited only by the specific and expressed terms of this Agreement and then only to the extent such specific and expressed terms thereof are in conformance with the Constitution and Laws of the State of Ohio and the Constitution and Laws of the United States.

# **INDIVIDUAL AND ASSOCIATION RIGHTS**

Both parties to this contract agree:

- A. Members of the instructional staff are entitled to full rights of citizenship regardless of race, sex, color and creed, place of origin, age or physical handicap.
- B. Members of the instructional staff have the right to participate in professional and civic organizations for their personal benefit and interest.
- C. Members of the instructional staff have the right to exercise their constitutional rights of political involvement without fear of reprisal or discipline in any form.
- D. Members of the instructional staff shall abide by negotiated Board-adopted policies and by provisions in individual instructional staff members' contracts, to the extent that their personal safety or well-being or that of students in their charge will not be threatened.
- E. Due process is a right to which all members of the instructional staff are entitled. The individual has the right to Association representation at any employment related meetings.
- F. Individuals have the right to join or not join any association.
- G. Teachers have the right to use of a designated school bulletin board; however, no label of membership or other identification shall be placed on any mailbox by any teacher or by the Association.
- H. The Administration shall provide nonconfidential information requested by the Association for the purpose of investigating and processing grievances.
- I. The Association shall provide nonconfidential information requested by the Administration for the purpose of investigating and processing grievances.
- J. A copy of the monthly Board of Education meeting agenda will be provided to the Association President at a time and in a form similar to that used for purposes of providing this information to the Board. Minutes of each Board meeting shall be provided to the Association President no later than five (5) working days after said minutes have been approved by the Board.
- K. The Association shall have the right to payroll deductions of dues authorized if such authorization is made in writing to the Board by each Association member. Such authorization shall continue in effect until such time as the individual member gives written notice to the Board Treasurer to discontinue such deductions or employment with the Board terminates. Dues collected in this manner shall be promptly transmitted to the Association. The Treasurer will notify the Association of any change during the school year related to union dues.
- L. The Board of Education will mail to the President of the Association the names and addresses of all new hires within ten (10) days of the Board's action to hire.

M. The Board shall authorize the Association up to a maximum of eight (8) days of absence without loss of pay per year (September 1 – August 31) to members of the Association elected to represent the Association or chosen to serve on programs or an official representative capacity at Association, NEA, or OEA meetings, conferences, or conventions. The eight total days shall be the maximum total days available for all such programs, regardless of the number of employees involved. Such leave may not be used for meetings, conferences, or any other teacher organizations. Such leave may only be taken in increments of whole days. As a condition of this leave, a request for use of this leave must be submitted by the President of the Association to the Superintendent or the Superintendent's designee not less than three (3) workdays prior to intended use.

In case of emergency the President of the Association shall have release time, such time shall be granted when the teacher's classroom responsibilities have been covered.

In the event negotiations for a successor Collective Bargaining Agreement are scheduled during working hours, this will not be charged to this or any other leave.

- N. The Board and Association recognize that a teacher has the right and responsibility to study, investigate, present, and discuss relevant facts and ideas in the teacher's area of competency. As a professional, the teacher shall strive to maintain a spirit of free, inquiry open-mindedness, and impartiality in his/her classroom. Complaints in regard to academic freedom will be submitted by the procedure contained in Board Policy #2240.
- O. The following items will be available to the Association for purposes of communication with bargaining unit members: use of bulletin board in each building, use of school mailboxes, PA system, and electronic messaging systems, school equipment and free of charge use of a meeting room to hold Association meetings.
- P. The Association, with prior agreement of the administration will have the ability to present at Board meetings, staff meetings, and new teacher orientation.

# TEACHER CONTRACTS

# A. Contract Basics:

The teacher contract in the case of a multiyear limited contract or a continuing contract shall be issued to a teacher no later than June 1 unless an anticipated decrease or shift in a specific building's enrollment necessitates a delay.

Said contract shall specify the following information:

- 1. Type of contract (Limited or Continuing)
- 2. School year
- 3. Name of the employee
- 4. Base pay

# B. Contract Status Non-Tenured Staff

The contractual procedures for the employment and reemployment of non-tenured certificated/licensed staff members shall be as follows:

- 1. New teachers to the district may be granted a one (1) year limited contract. Effective July 1, 2002, nontenured staff members teaching in an area in which they have less than full certification/licensure (for example, holding a substitute certificate/license, temporary certificate/license, etc.) shall be employed on a one-year limited contract until they obtain full certification/licensure in such area; upon obtaining full certification/licensure in the area in which they are teaching, such employees will then be eligible for multiyear contracts under paragraphs B.2., 3., and 4 of this Article, provided however, teachers holding full certification/licensure in the area in which they are teaching shall not revert to one-year limited contracts merely because they are transferred to teaching an area in which they do not have full certification/licensure.
- 2. All teachers who have successfully completed two (2) years (two one-year limited contracts) of teaching in the district, as verified through the Board-adopted evaluation procedure, shall be granted a two (2) year limited contract.
- 3. All teachers who have successfully completed two (2) two (2) year contracts as verified through the Board-adopted evaluation procedure, shall be granted a three (3) year limited contract.
- 4. All teachers who have successfully completed a three (3) year limited contract as verified through the Board-adopted evaluation procedure, shall be granted a three (3) year limited contract.

In summary, contracts are awarded on the following schedule: one (1) year, one (1) year, two (2) years, two (2) years, and three (3) years for each contract thereafter.

# C. Continuing Contracts

Any teacher who expects to become eligible for a continuing contract during the duration of his or her next limited contract may request, by March 1, a limited contract of lesser duration. In this way, a request for continuing contract can be considered at the earliest possible time. Said teacher will submit a Continuing

Contract Request Form for continuing contract no later than October 1 of any contract year. Recommendation concerning such continuing contract shall be made by the Superintendent. That recommendation shall be accepted or rejected by the Board.

# D. Reemployment of Retired Teachers

- The reemployed teacher shall start with salary schedule placement experience of zero (0) to ten (10) years at the discretion of the superintendent. The reemployed teacher shall not advance on the salary schedule for each year of reemployment service in the district and there shall be no placement or advancement beyond master's degree.
- 2. Length of contract shall be for one (1) year and shall automatically expire without the district having to give notice to nonrenew.
- 3. In the event of a reduction in force, the reemployed teacher shall have no seniority and shall not have the ability to accumulate seniority under Article 11 of the contract.
- 4. Reemployed teachers shall not be eligible to participate in any retirement incentive program nor are they eligible for severance pay.
- 5. Reemployed teachers shall have the option for the district insurance programs.
- 6. Reemployed teachers shall commence their employment with zero (0) days accumulated sick leave and shall earn one and one-quarter (1½) days of sick leave per month. The district may advance a reemployed teacher up to five (5) days sick leave.
- 7. Reemployed teachers shall be regarded as veteran teachers and placed accordingly within the differentiated evaluation procedure.
- 8. The district is not obligated to rehire or give a preference to a teacher from the Brookville district or any other school district.

# PAYROLL PROCEDURES

Payroll periods are established on the basis of twice a month with twenty-four pay periods per year, payable on the 5<sup>th</sup> and 20<sup>th</sup> of each month. When a payday falls on a holiday, weekend or a day of vacation, the pay will be made on the preceding work day.

Deductions shall be made for unauthorized absences, federal, state and local taxes required by law, the teacher's share of the retirement contribution, and union dues.

Tax sheltered annuities and 457 deferred compensation plans may be deducted. Two open periods of fifteen (15) days each, January 10-25 and September 10-25, are enrollment periods for tax shelters. The Treasurer's office will maintain a current list of qualified companies. New qualified companies will be added when there are a minimum of five (5) people who wish to participate in another company

<u>Direct Payroll Deposit</u> – The teaching employees may designate depository and direct automatic payroll deposits to banking institutions which are members of the National Automatic Clearinghouse Association (NACHA). Direct deposit changes must be made on forms available from the Treasurer.

All employees will be paid through direct payroll deposit. All employees will receive electronic payroll notifications.

The Board and its agents shall not be liable for any errors or omissions by the clearinghouse bank or the depository of said funds.

# COMMITTEES

# A. District Committees

The Superintendent may form paid and/or unpaid committees to collaboratively address local/state/federal requirements or further the progress of district-wide initiatives. Additionally, the Superintendent may pay an hourly/daily rate for committee work on days beyond the 186 contracted work days.

Teachers who serve on district committees designated as paid committees shall receive an annual stipend of \$300 per committee member. Current committees with paid designation include the Ohio Teacher Evaluation System (OTES) committee (up to 4 members) and the High Quality Student Data (HQSD) committee (up to 6 members).

Paid committees will generally meet off school time over an extended period of time

# B. Class Size Resource Committee

The Administration and Association recognize the value of controlled class sizes and agree that the Administration will work with the Association to keep class sizes reasonable. The following process is provided to collaboratively resolve any teacher concerns regarding class size:

At the request of the Association or the administration, a Class Size Resource Committee shall be formed for the purpose of developing and providing resource information on the sizes of classes in Brookville Local Schools and to hear concerns of administrators and/or teachers. At such time, the Association shall appoint the teacher members, and the Superintendent shall appoint the administrative members of the Class Resource Committee. When an elementary class, K-5, gets above 26 students, the Class Resource Committee will be convened.

- 1. The Class Size Resource Committee shall develop a bank of resources for future use in developing such resources, the committee's consideration may include the following:
  - a. Community volunteers
  - b. High school volunteers/tutors
  - c. College students (including but not limited to student teachers)
  - d. Technology resources
  - e. Professional development
- 2. The Class Size Resource Committee shall develop a list of factors to be considered when evaluating and making recommendations to resolve problems of class size. In developing such a list, the committee's consideration shall include the following:
  - a. Grade level of the class at risk
  - b. Course content for the class at risk
  - c. Available space
  - d. Cost effectiveness

When a teacher or administrator identifies a potential classroom at risk, said teacher and building administrator shall initially have a conference to resolve the problem. If no resolution is satisfactory to both parties, the problem may be presented to the Class Size Resource Committee for recommendations. If no recommendations are satisfactory to both parties, the problem will be presented to the Superintendent for resolution.

C. Intervention Assistance Team Committees (IAT)/ Student Success Team (SST)

There shall be standing Committees as set forth below. Each of the following committees shall have a minimum of 4 and a maximum of 6 members. Each member of a committee may annually receive up to four (4) hours of training. A member whose committee routinely meets outside the normal teacher workday shall receive the indicated stipend. The stipend will be reduced by 50% if meetings are held during the normal teacher workday (e.g., IAT meetings held during lunch or planning period).

Grade Level	# Committees	Annual stipend per member
K – 3	up to 2	\$400
4 - 6	up to 2	\$400
7 – 8	. 1	\$400
9 – 12	1	\$400

Teachers who are not members of the convening committee will receive \$15.00 for required attendance at the entire IAT meeting.

Submission for payment must be made by the 15<sup>th</sup> of the month for all meetings attended the previous month.

# D. Mentors:

Teachers who serve as trained mentors for Resident Educators in years one and two of the Resident Educator program shall receive an annual stipend of \$300 per Resident Educator.

# E. Facilitators:

Teachers who serve as trained facilitators for Resident Educators completing the Resident Educator Summative Assessment (RESA) in year two of the Resident Educator program shall receive an annual stipend of \$150 per Resident Educator.

Members of the committee are responsible for initiating the paperwork necessary for payment by contacting the appropriate administrator. All paperwork needs to be completed, approved and submitted to the Treasurer's Office by May 15<sup>th</sup> to receive payment.

# **BOARD OF EDUCATION RECORDS OF PERSONNEL**

There shall be only one official personnel file for each employee which shall be located in the Board of Education Office. Each teacher has the right, upon reasonable notice, to view the materials in their personnel files with the Superintendent or his designee present, exclusive of confidential letters of recommendation or reference. Teachers shall receive a copy of all information placed in the file. If an unfavorable statement or notation is in the file, the staff member would be given an opportunity to place a statement of rebuttal or explanation in his/her file.

After a period of five (5) years, any disciplinary action of record (verbal or written reprimands and/or suspensions) shall be removed from an employee's personnel file, provided said teacher has not received any similar discipline in the intervening sixty (60) month period and that such information is not of a moral nature or actionable under Ohio law.

No anonymous material/complaints shall be placed into an employee's personnel file.

# **EVALUATIONS**

- A. Evaluations of certified staff will be conducted in accordance with Ohio Law, adopted by the State Board of Education, and the policy of the Brookville Board of Education.
- B. The Association and Board agree to establish a standing joint Evaluation Committee. This committee shall establish the policies, procedures, and processes, including the evaluation instrument and determination of High Quality Student Data, for the evaluation of teachers in the District and to regularly review the effectiveness of the aforementioned items. The committee shall be composed of four Association members (Association President, elementary representative, intermediate representative, high school representative). All other committee members will be district employees appointed by the Superintendent.
- C. Certificated/licensed personnel will be furnished with copies of all classroom observation documents to be included in personnel folders.
- D. Evaluation will be a cooperative and continuous process undertaken to improve the quality of instruction and to facilitate professional growth of the individual.
- E. Evaluations will be considered when making current and future employment decisions. The summative evaluation rating shall be based upon a preponderance of the evidence, assessed in a holistic manner, that is aligned to the Ohio Educator Standards.
- F. The Board of Education will provide professional development and growth opportunities in accordance with Ohio law and regulations.
- G. Teachers shall not have the right to file a grievance over the evaluator's views and perceptions of the teacher's performance, including specific ratings in the evaluation rubric.
- H. The evaluation procedure will be executed uniformly throughout the District. Failure by the District to adhere to any timeline, procedure or due process set forth by the committee or condition established in

this agreement shall require a secondary review of the evaluation materials by a trained evaluator. Such errors shall automatically require re-employment of the teacher.

I. Outside or third-party vendors shall not be hired for the purpose of conducting teacher evaluations.

# BEHAVIOR MANAGEMENT

The principles of progressive discipline shall be applied except when the severity of the offense merits moving to a higher level of discipline. Prior to the imposition of a suspension or higher discipline, the affected teacher may have the right to an informal hearing before the Superintendent or his/her designee.

The levels of discipline include:

- Verbal Reprimand
- Written Reprimand
- Suspension without pay up to three (3) workdays

#### Dismissal

# A. Termination

The Board may terminate the contract of any teacher for cause in accordance with the provisions of state law including, but not limited to, Ohio Revised Code 3319.16 and 3319.161.

#### B. Nonrenewal

A teacher who is to be nonrenewed shall be advised of said recommendation by the Superintendent at least seven (7) working days prior to the Board meeting at which the Board will consider the Superintendent's recommendation. The teacher may request in writing to address the Board in executive session prior to Board action. If requested by the teacher, he/she may be represented by counsel of his/her choice at this meeting. Nonrenewal procedures shall be in accordance with the provisions of state law including, but not limited to, Ohio Revised Code 3319.11 and 3319.111.

# **POSTING OF AVAILABLE POSITIONS**

The assignment and reassignment of teachers is the responsibility of the Superintendent of Schools. The assignment and reassignment will be made in accordance with the needs of the schools as determined by the Superintendent. The decision of the Superintendent shall be final. The administration will publish a listing of all vacancies for the succeeding school year as soon as they are aware (notified in writing) of said vacancies. The listing will be updated as vacancies occur during the school year.

- A. Notice of vacancies of bargaining unit work, which result from nonrenewals, resignations, terminations, or the creation of new positions, will be sent to the principal of each building.
- B. A notice of all available positions will be posted by electronic messaging to bargaining member's school message mailbox.
- C. Vacancies which are posted shall not be filled, except on a temporary basis, until the vacancy has been posted for at least ten (10) calendar days.
- D. After the first paycheck in July until the beginning of the next school year, vacancies which are posted shall not be filled, except on a temporary basis, until the vacancy has been posted for at least five (5) calendar days.
- E. When the Board decides to fill a supplemental vacancy, the position(s) shall be offered to:
  - 1. Qualified, certified/licensed employees in the district.
  - 2. Qualified, certified/licensed employees outside the district.
  - 3. Qualified, neither certified nor licensed employees.

# **TRANSFERS**

- A. Teachers are subject to transfer from position to position at the discretion of the Superintendent.
- B. The following factors shall be considered in the transfer of teachers:
  - 1. Prior to transfers being made, the Superintendent will meet with the affected employee(s). All reasons for the transfer shall be reviewed. The Superintendent's decision shall be final. During the summer recess, notification of such conference shall be sent by certified mail to the affected employee(s). Employees are encouraged to keep any changes of summer address on file with the Board Treasurer.
  - 2. When teachers are to be transferred for reasons of decreased enrollment, consideration shall be given to the length of service which these employees have rendered in the system.
  - 3. After notification of transfer, there will be a meeting of the teacher and the receiving principal to plan the transition.

# REDUCTION IN STAFF

- A. Definitions: The following definitions are primarily for the purpose of this Article 11 only:
  - 1. Seniority Seniority is the length of continuous service of a teacher, beginning with the most recent date of hire. Seniority will continue to accrue during all paid leaves of absences, if any, and for a period of two (2) years from the effective date of a layoff. Seniority will not be lost, but it will not accrue for any other leaves of absence or for employment by the Board in a position outside the bargaining unit. For purposes of reduction in force and recall, continuing contract teachers shall be deemed to have seniority over teachers who do not have continuing contracts. For purposes of reduction in force, limited contract teachers with full certification/licensure (for example, not substitute certificate/license or temporary certificate/license) shall be deemed to have seniority over limited contract teachers who do not have full certification/licensure. However, this does not apply to employees who were transferred to teaching an area in which they do not have full certification/licensure.
  - 2. Suspension of Contracts The procedure spoken to in Section 3319.17 ORC.
- B. The number of teachers may decline from one school year to the next due to deaths, retirements, resignations, terminations, leaves of absence, or nonrenewals. Otherwise, reductions in staff shall be in accordance with this article.

The Board may implement the suspension of contracts as a means of reducing the number of teachers if, in the judgment of the Board of Education, it becomes necessary to reduce the number of teachers for any one or more of the following reasons:

- 1. Decline in student enrollment. This includes, but is not limited to, a long-term decline in enrollment. The decline in enrollment need not occur in the same year as the contract suspension.
- 2. Return to duty of regular teachers after leaves of absence.
- 3. Suspension of schools or territorial changes affecting the school district.
- Economic factors.
- C. In making reductions in force, through the suspension of contracts, the Board shall proceed to suspend contracts in accordance with the provisions of O.R.C. § 3319.17, in this order:
  - 1. First, the Board shall accomplish any necessary reductions in staff through attrition (i.e. retirement, voluntary resignation, etc.), before any suspension of contracts.
  - 2. Second, limited contract or non-tenured teachers shall be reduced first utilizing the following order:
    - a. Certification/Licensure within the affected teaching field.
    - b. Consideration of performance evaluations. All evaluations rate above "Ineffective" are deemed to be comparable.
    - c. When evaluations are comparable, seniority in the District shall prevail, with the contract of the least senior limited contract teacher in the affected teaching field the first to be suspended.
  - 3. Third, should the necessary reduction of staff exceed the number of limited contract teachers in the affected field, only then shall teachers with continuing contracts be reduced by utilizing the following order:

- a. Certification/Licensure within the affected teaching field.
- b. Consideration of performance evaluations. All evaluations rated above "Ineffective" are deemed to be comparable.
- c. When evaluations are comparable, seniority in the District shall prevail, with the contract of the least senior continuing contract teacher in the affected teaching field the first to be suspended.
- D. No less than fourteen (14) days prior to submitting a final written recommendation to the Board concerning suspension of contracts, the Superintendent shall submit a draft of the proposed recommendation to the Association, and shall cause to be notified, in writing, each teacher whose contract is in jeopardy of suspension by reason of the proposed recommendations.
- E. If the Association and/or the affected teacher has objections to the proposed recommendations, they shall communicate such objections to the Superintendent, in writing, within seven (7) days of the receipt of the proposed recommendations, and such notification shall specifically state in what manner, if at all, the proposed recommendation would, if implemented by the Board, violate paragraph C (above).
- F. If the teacher who has received the notice is certified/licensed in another area of certification/licensure, but has not taught in that area in the last five (5) years, the Superintendent may require the teacher must commit to obtaining six (6) semester hours of college credit in the specific area of certification/licensure within one (1) year before the teacher shall displace another teacher. Failure to meet this requirement may result in the teacher's contract being non-renewed and loss of all recall rights.
- G. All teachers whose contracts have been suspended shall be placed on a Recall List.
- H. Teachers on the recall list will be recalled for vacancies in areas for which they are certificated/licensed in the following order:
  - 1. First, teachers having continuing contracts in the reverse order of layoff.
  - 2. Second, teachers having limited contracts in reverse order of layoff.

If the teacher being recalled is certified/licensed in that area but has not taught in that area of certification/licensure in the last five (5) years, before receiving that position the teacher must commit to obtaining, within one year, six (6) semester hours of college credit in the specific area of certification/licensure.

- I. As vacancies occur, a teacher on the Recall List will be offered the position, by means of certified mail, at the last address given in writing to the Superintendent by the teacher. The offer will be deemed to have been made on the date of mailing, even if the certified mail is unclaimed or undeliverable. To accept the position, verbal intent must be given within ten (10) days and confirmation in writing within the following four (4) days (14 days total). Failure to accept the position offered within ten (10) calendar days of the date of mailing the offer will allow the Administration to offer the position to the next eligible person. Any teacher on the Recall List who completes additional course work qualifying him/her for positions other than those listed on the Recall List shall notify the Board Treasurer of the change and shall be eligible for the next vacancy.
- J. A teacher notified of recall to a position may turn down the first offered position, allowing the Superintendent to offer said position to the next person on the Recall List who is eligible to fill said position. The person making the turndown would retain his/her position on the Recall List. If a teacher refuses recall to another position, said teacher's name shall be removed from the Recall List.
- K. Unless removed from the Recall List for reasons set forth herein, the names of teachers who have been placed on the Recall List shall remain on the list for a period of twenty-four (24) months following the last day of actual service. The Board will have no further obligation to rehire a teacher whose name has been removed from the Recall List. Persons whose names are on the Recall List shall be sent, by the Board, a copy of all job listings/vacancies occurring in the school district, as they are publicly posted.
- L. All teachers in the bargaining unit will be placed on a list which designates their seniority, most recent date of hire, their status as to whether or not they are limited contract or continuing contract, the teaching fields for which the teacher holds valid certification/licensure, and the teaching fields in which the teacher has obtained six (6) additional semester hours of course work relating to the certification/licensure areas. The seniority list will be updated yearly and distributed to the bargaining unit by November 1st.
- M. If evaluations are comparable and seniority is tied and such tie would affect suspension of contracts or recall rights, such tie shall be broken by:
  - 1. Date of hire by Board of Education action
  - 2. Actual first day of work
  - 3. Date signed contract is received by the Board of Education's designee.
  - 4. Flip of a coin with the affected employees and Association President present.

# <u>LEAVE PROVISIONS FOR SICK LEAVE AND</u> PERSONAL LEAVE, INCLUDING ATTENDANCE INCENTIVES

# A. Sick Leave

All full-time teachers shall be entitled to one and one-fourth days of sick leave per calendar month, unless on leave of absence, or a total of fifteen (15) days per year. For absences in excess of five (5) consecutive days the Board of Education may require a physician's verification.

Previously accumulated sick leave of a teacher who has been separated from another Ohio Public Agency as provided in the Ohio Revised Code, shall be accepted at full value to the maximum allowed by the Brookville Board of Education provided none of such accumulated sick leave has been converted to pay upon retirement. It shall be the responsibility of the employee to request the statement of transfer of accumulated sick leave from the Treasurer's Office upon leaving the district.

Sick leave will be granted for a day or a half day. Deductions of sick leave will be in one-half blocks as follows: one half day; over four hours, then one full day shall be deducted.

# Reasons acceptable for sick leave are:

1. Absences due to personal illness, pregnancy, adoption, emergency medical or dental treatment/or appointment, injury, exposure to contagious disease which could be communicated to other employees or to students, and for illness, injury or death in the teacher's family.

Sick leave for pregnancy (normal delivery) is defined as six (6) weeks immediately following the birth.

Teacher may use sick leave for any disabling complication of pregnancy or childbirth, provided she is on active pay status at the time the disability occurs. Certification that the pregnancy or childbirth has produced disabling complications must be provided by a physician and attached to the sick leave form. The certification must state the nature of the disabling condition along with an estimate of the length of time the teacher will be disabled.

Sick leave for adoption shall not exceed ten (10) working days beginning with the date of the child's placement in the home.

2. For a death or illness of a near relative to a maximum of five (5) sick-leave days. A near relative shall be defined as mother-in-law, father-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother, sister, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, or spouse's grandparent. After consideration of remaining personal leave, the Superintendent's prior approval is required for emergency situations not listed.

#### B. Personal Leave

All personnel, except intermittent employees, are eligible for a maximum of three (3) school calendar days with pay for personal leave per contract year. At the end of each contract year, no more than one (1) unused personal leave day may be rolled over into the following contract year. The employee could then use a maximum of four (4) personal leave days in a contract year. Only one unused personal leave day may be rolled over, no matter the number of unused leave days and they shall not accumulate over multiple contract years.

A ten percent (10%) limitation of the staff per building shall not be exceeded on any given day without prior administrative approval. Personal leave requests for the day immediately preceding or the day following school

opening or closing, school holiday and/or parent-teacher conference compensation day shall not be approved, EXCEPT IN THE CASE OF AN EXTREME DOCUMENTED EMERGENCY, WHERE DAY BEFORE OR DAY AFTER WILL NOT APPLY. The school year calendar shall be used to establish a twelve-month period for use purposes. Personal leave days shall be requested on Board of Education forms. The Treasurer of the Board shall make proper payroll deductions for any unauthorized use of personal leave.

Application for personal leave shall be submitted at least one (1) days prior to use, EXCEPT IN THE CASE OF DOCUMENTED, EXTREME EMERGENCY. USE OF PERSONAL LEAVE FOR EMERGENCIES REQUIRES NO PRIOR NOTIFICATION BUT THE EMPLOYEE (1) shall be required to notify his/her supervisor as soon as possible and (2) shall be required to file the proper forms upon return to work.

# C. Attendance Incentive

Attendance incentives will pay out as follows with days missed defined as days of absence for sick leave, personal leave, or deduct days.

Employees who miss zero days in a semester will receive \$400 for that semester.

Employees who miss greater than zero days but no more than 1 day will receive \$250 for that semester.

The incentive for first semester will be paid in February following the semester. The second semester incentive will be paid in June following the end of school.

# SICK LEAVE BANK

In the event an employee has exhausted his/her accumulated sick leave and, upon notification by the Office of the Treasurer of the advance of five days from the District, as per Ohio Revised Code, the employee will, prior to actual use, contact the Association for approval of borrowing days from the Sick Leave Bank. Upon written approval from the Association's Executive Committee, the District shall advance days from the Sick Leave Bank. The individual can request annually up to twenty (20) days of additional sick leave from the days of sick leave that have been deposited in the District Sick Leave Bank. The Sick Leave Bank may accumulate donated days to a maximum of one hundred ten (110) days. No individual shall be permitted to accrue more than sixty (60) days of advanced sick leave from the sick leave bank during their career with the District. These days will be paid back after all days have been paid back to the District. In the event that an individual leaves the District with a negative balance of sick days, the teacher shall be financially responsible to the District for the cost of those days. Loans from the Sick Leave Bank will be limited to those individuals who have contributed a day or days to the bank.

Each bargaining unit member may contribute one (1) day of his/her accumulated sick leave to the Sick Leave Bank during the enrollment period. The enrollment period will be from the first workday of the year through September 15 of each year. New teachers hired after the school year has commenced shall have thirty (30) days to enroll. The donated day is not returnable. A donated day guarantees a bargaining unit member Sick Leave Bank membership for the length of employment. Should the number of donated days in the Sick Leave Bank drop below ten (10 days), sick leave bank members will be required to donate an additional day. A written application is required for approval of days. A doctor's excuse may be requested. The member who borrows days will pay back the days at the rate of 50% of his/her annual accumulated sick leave at the end of the salary contract year, each year until the total number of days borrowed has been restored to the bank.

# **LEAVES OF ABSENCE**

# A. Family and Medical Leave (FMLA)

The Board and employees shall have whatever rights, duties, discretion, and responsibilities as set forth in the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) of 1993 (29 U.S.C. §2601, et seq.) as is or may be amended, under Section 3430.01 of the Bylaws and Policies of Brookville Local Schools, and in accordance with the following provisions:

- To be eligible for FMLA leave, teachers must have been continuously employed for at least one (1) year
  and have either: (a) worked for at least 1250 hours during the 12- month period immediately preceding
  the date of the teacher's request; or (b) have been employed under a regular teaching contract during
  the 12-month period immediately preceding the date of the teacher's request.
- 2. FMLA leave may be taken for the following reasons:
  - a. The birth and care of a newborn child:
  - b. Placement of a child for adoption or foster care with the teacher;
  - c. To care for an immediate family member (spouse, child, or parent) with serious health condition;
  - d. When the teacher is unable to work because of a serious health condition; or
  - e. Any other reason expressly provided for in the FMLA.
- 3. No more than twelve (12) weeks of FMLA leave will be granted in any 12-month period.
- 4. For purposes of determining the "12-month period" in "3" above in which an eligible employee is entitled to twelve (12) weeks of leave, said 12-month period shall be a "rolling" 12-month period measured forward from the date an employee first uses FMLA leave.
- 5. When the need for FMLA leave is foreseeable, the teacher must provide thirty (30) days advance notice by requesting leave in writing. When thirty (30) day notice is not possible, the teacher must provide notice as soon as possible under the circumstances.
- 6. The teacher must provide sufficient information to demonstrate that the request for leave qualifies for FMLA protection, including the anticipated timing and duration of the leave. Sufficient information may include the nature of the illness, the extent to which a family member is in need of care, and/or other facts supporting the need for leave. If the Board believes the teacher has provided insufficient information, the teacher will be notified of the additional information necessary and provided sufficient time to supply the additional information requested.
- 7. Once it has been determined that the teacher's situation qualifies for FMLA leave, the teacher must concurrently use any accrued, paid sick leave under this Agreement as FMLA leave. If the employee does not meet the requirements for paid leave, the employee will still be entitled to FMLA leave, subject to the requirements in this Agreement. After FMLA leave entitlement has been exhausted or expires, the teacher will be entitled to any additional paid or unpaid leave provided for in this Agreement.
- 8. An employee on FMLA leave shall, at not less than two-week intervals, report to the Superintendent the employee's status and intent to return to work.
- 9. An employee who takes FMLA leave shall continue to participate in the Board's group insurance program during the leave on the same terms and conditions that would have applied had no leave been taken. The premium portion payable by the employee is due on the first day of the month in advance. Upon expiration of FMLA leave, the employee may continue dental and/or hospital insurance by making payments in

accordance with COBRA regulations; to continue to be enrolled in the life insurance plan, the employee must pay the entire premium each month.

- 10. If the teacher is requesting intermittent leave or reduced schedule leave due to a serious medical condition, the request must be supported by a medical certification as to the necessity and expected duration of the leave. Employees must make reasonable efforts to schedule leave for planned medical treatment so as not to unduly disrupt the school district's operations. When an employee is required to provide a certificate from a health care provider, the required form will be available in the Superintendent's office. The Board may require the teacher to transfer, for the duration of any period of intermittent or reduced schedule leave, to an equivalent position that better accommodates the proposed intermittent or reduced leave schedule, if such a position exists within the teacher's area of certification.
- 11. An employee that is on FMLA leave due to his/her own serious health condition which made the employee unable to perform his/her job duties may not return to work without furnishing a certification from the employee's health care provider that the employee is able to resume work. Upon request by the administration, and at the Board's expense, an employee shall present himself/herself to a physician, who is paid by the Board, for a physical or mental examination. The employee may choose the physician to conduct such independent examination from any physician included in the "network" for the Board's group insurance plan; provided, however, that the employee may not choose a physician who has previously seen the employee as a patient. If the opinion of the employee's physician and the opinion of the Board-paid physician differ, the administration may require a third opinion, again at the Board's expense, from a third physician mutually agreed upon by the first two physicians. The third opinion shall be final and binding.
- 12. Upon expiration of FMLA leave, the employee shall be assigned to the same position held before taking leave, if the position is available; if not, the employee will be assigned to a similar position.

An employee who does not return to work upon the expiration of FMLA leave shall have his/her employment terminated.

# B. Unpaid Leave

In addition to qualified FMLA leave and upon approval of the Superintendent and the Board, a teacher may be granted an unpaid leave of absence for the following reasons: (1) medical; (2) maternity; (3) adoptions; (4) child care; (5) military deployment; (6) professional study; and (7) others specifically set forth in this Article. The Superintendent may also grant unpaid leave when requested under unusual or extenuating circumstances.

Upon request and with twenty (20) days advance notice, the Superintendent will grant up to ninety contract days of unpaid leave beyond qualified and documented FMLA leave. The Board of Education will cover 50% of healthcare and dental benefits during the unpaid leave.

Part-time and hourly-rated teachers shall not be granted unpaid leaves of absence, except as may be required under the FMLA.

The Board may grant leave of absence without the request of the teacher in accordance with Ohio Revised Code §3319.13 and §3319.16.

# 1. Termination of Unpaid Leave

Teachers are entitled to reinstatement at the expiration of the leave to the same or a similar class assignment and shall be given consideration for a similar supplement duty assignment, if any, as held prior to the leave.

Seniority does not continue to accrue while on unpaid leave of absence; however, a leave of absence does not constitute a break in service.

A teacher returning from any leave of absence for the reason of illness, maternity, or disability shall present verification by the teacher's physicians of fitness to return to work.

If, at the end of the maximum period of leave, the teacher does not return to work and has not been granted disability under STRS, the teacher's employment contract will be terminated.

Failure to complete the terms for which leave was requested shall be grounds for termination of leave and/or contract.

# C. Military Leave

All teachers of Brookville Schools who are members of the Ohio National Guard, Ohio Defense Corps, or the Ohio Naval Militia, or members of other reserve components of the Armed Forces of the United States shall be granted leaves of absence from their respective duties without loss of pay for the time period, and with such other rights, as set forth in Federal law.

# D. Sabbatical Leave

Upon recommendation by the Superintendent, the School Board will grant to a teacher an unpaid sabbatical leave for study, including study in another area of specialization, for travel or for other reasons deemed to have value to the school system, subject to the following conditions:

- 1. Said leave shall be for a period of one (1) full semester or one (1) full year. An additional semester or year may be granted by the Board upon request.
- 2. If there are sufficient qualified applicants, sabbatical leave will be granted to a maximum of two (2) percent of the bargaining unit at any one time.
- 3. Requests for sabbatical leave must be received by the Superintendent in writing in such form as he may require, not later than December 31, and action must be taken on all such requests not later than April 1 of the school year preceding the school year for which the sabbatical leave is requested.
- 4. The teacher must have completed an aggregate of at least five (5) full school years of credited service in the Brookville Local School System in order to be eligible for sabbatical leave.
- 5. Upon return from sabbatical leave, a teacher will be considered as if he/she had been on active service during the leave and will be placed on the salary schedule at the level he/she would have achieved if he/she had not taken such leave. All benefits to which a teacher was entitled at the time his/her leave commenced, including unused accumulated sick leave, will be restored to him/her upon his/her return, and he/she will be assigned to a similar position to that which he/she held at the time leave commenced. A teacher on a leave of absence shall notify the Superintendent not later than March 1 of his/her intention to return or not return to his/her position.
- 6. A teacher on sabbatical leave may at his/her expense continue health insurance and other fringe benefits.

# E. Assault Leave

The Board will grant assault leave to employees absent due to physical disability resulting from assault under the following conditions:

- The Board of Education shall provide assault leave for teachers who are absent due to any physical disability caused by an assault which occurs during the course of Board employment. Such leave will not cause any loss in pay, or be charged against sick leave accumulated by the teacher.
- 2. Medical verification shall be provided for assault leave which extends beyond five (5) work days. Assault leave shall not extend beyond thirty (30) work days unless additional days are approved by the Board of Education. If leave is to extend beyond thirty (30) work days, the Board may require an additional medical examination by a physician of the Board's choice. In such an event, the Board shall pay the full cost of the examination.
- 3. Teachers who use assault leave shall furnish to the Superintendent a written, signed statement describing the circumstances and events surrounding the assault, including the location and time of the assault, names and addresses of witnesses (if known), and a description of the injuries sustained. All cases of assault are to be investigated as thoroughly as possible. The Association agrees to encourage teachers to cooperate fully with administration and law enforcement officers in the apprehension and prosecution of persons charged with assault.
- 4. Assault leave compensation shall be limited to sixty (60) work days per school year.
- 5 All assault leave shall be counted against the amount of FMLA leave the employee is entitled to receive under Article 14.

# F. Professional Study Leave

Leave without pay may be granted on the basis of one (1) full semester or one (1) calendar year for full-time graduate student in a program approved by the Superintendent.

Credits earned must be filed with the Superintendent or his designee prior to reinstatement. An extension of one full year of leave may be granted upon request.

Any teacher requesting a leave of absence who thereafter changed plans, shall notify the Superintendent not later than May 1.

A teacher on a leave of absence who wishes to return shall notify the Superintendent not later than March 1.

#### G. Jury – Witness Leave

Absence for jury duty shall be granted for reporting to or serving on a jury. Each person on jury leave shall return payment received for such services to the Treasurer of the Brookville Board, and at the next regular pay period the employee shall receive full payment of his/her regular salary from the Board for the day(s) of excused absence for this purpose.

Any employee subpoenaed as a witness shall be granted witness leave up to five (5) days for purposes of serving as a witness. Each person on witness leave shall return payment received for such services to the Treasurer of the Brookville Board, and at the next regular pay period the employee shall receive full payment of his/her regular salary from the Board for the day(s) of excused absence for this purpose; provided, however, that if an employee is subpoenaed by the Association or a representative of the Association to testify in any dispute between the Board and the Association or a member of the bargaining unit it represents, the employee shall keep his/her witness fee and shall not receive from the Board any payment toward his/her regular salary for the days of excused absence for witness leave.

# DISTRICT POLICY/ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDELINES

In order to inform staff of Board of Education policies and procedures, the District will maintain electronic copies of BYLAWS AND POLICIES OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDELINES OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT on the school website and the same will be updated as changes are approved. The District will provide information on policy issues at staff meetings or through in-service.

# PROFESSIONAL GROWTH/TUITION REIMBURSEMENT

The Board and Association believe that continuing education and professional growth is beneficial to the quality of classroom instruction.

The Board will establish an individual nontransferable account of \$700.00 for each full-time employee per year and \$350.00 for each half-time employee per year for the purpose of providing professional growth. Each employee may use the money in this account to obtain additional training or to apply said funds to expenses for professional leave. Attendance at a workshop/class when directed by an administrator will not be deducted from the individual's professional growth account. In addition employees may use these funds to cover the cost of background checks and required state certifications for extracurricular contracts.

All hours newly obtained through tuition reimbursement shall be graduate hours from an accredited college, university, or recognized teacher training program. Hours must be related to education or subject related areas. If there is a question on tuition reimbursement criteria, it is suggested that the Superintendent be contacted for approval prior to enrollment.

Employees shall submit proof of successful completion (passing or a grade of "C" or above) of course work or training to the Board Treasurer. Professional leave expenses shall be reimbursed upon the submission of the appropriate receipts to the Board Treasurer. Current purchase order procedure shall be required.

The Board will provide each National Board Certificate candidate with one professional day for preparing for the certification process. The Board will reimburse up to \$300 for the National Board Certification application fee upon obtaining National Board Certification.

# SEVERANCE/RETIREMENT PAY

The employee shall receive one-quarter (1/4) accumulated days up to two hundred ninety-four (294) days of sick leave or not more than seventy-three and one-half (73 ½) days. The amount per day shall be calculated by dividing the number of contracted days into the base salary of the employee at the time of retirement.

Retirement for purposes of this section shall mean retirement from either State Teachers Retirement System or School Employees Retirement System. The Treasurer of the Board of Education shall receive a copy of notice of approval from either retirement system. If an employee retires prior to the end of the school year, fifty percent (50%) of earned severance pay will be forfeited. The retirement funds being paid by the Brookville Local School District shall be paid within the calendar year of the last day employed in the Brookville Local School District. In the event of the death of an employee eligible for retirement by STRS standards, severance will be paid to the estate. In addition, in order to be eligible for this Severance/Retirement Pay, the employee must have retired or died while an employee of Brookville Local Schools.

# DISBURSEMENT OF SEVERANCE/RETIREMENT PAY

Severance/retirement pay for any teacher age 55 or older who is retiring will roll over into a designed 403(b) accumulated leave plan. Any changes in the Section 403(b) regulations or any court or administrative agency interpretations of the regulations that are contrary to the provision of this agreement will make the provisions of the paragraph null and void. In the event that this provision becomes null and void, the parties shall meet to negotiate appropriate changes in line with the changes or the court of administrative agency interpretations.

In the event of death of a teacher, payment hereunder will be made in accordance with O.R.C. Section 2113.04.

# **INSURANCE AND HEALTH BENEFITS**

# A. Benefits

The Board of Education will make available health insurance benefits to the certified/licensed staff. Coverage is not automatic. Employees must submit paperwork to the treasurer and/or complete the open enrollment process to be enrolled.

Certified/licensed staff working four or more hours per day shall be eligible for the Board contributions as follows:

The Board will pay a maximum of \$18,231 for the calendar year 2024. The Board will pay a maximum of \$18,778 for the calendar year 2025 and \$19,341 for the calendar year 2026.

High Deductible Health Plan Incentive (HDHP H.S.A.):

The Board will contribute \$2,000 for family plans and \$1,000 for single plans in two equal payments (January and September) for each calendar year of the agreement.

Funding will be prorated for employees working less than full-time. Funding levels are earned based on employment status on a monthly basis. Any contribution made that was not "earned" will be paid back to the district. The board reserves the right to withhold the balance owed from final payment due the employee.

\*In the event that medical insurance renewal rates exceed 10%, the BTA and Administration will meet to discuss insurance plan design changes that reduce the impact of the renewal increase.

Certified/licensed staff working less than four hours per day shall be eligible for 50% of the above contributions.

The Board may change carriers for this insurance as long as the service and plan coverage is the same as the plan listed herein. In the event the Board decides to change carriers, the Board shall notify the Association President of the proposed change not less than thirty (30) days prior to the implementation of said change. The Board shall provide the Association President with copies of the new plan and specifications and any other pertinent information regarding the new carrier. Employee participation in any of these insurance benefits is voluntary.

The Board will provide HMO Dental for an additional premium.

The Board of Education will pay one hundred percent (100%) of the cost of single medical and dental coverage for full-time employees.

Should the employee choose to have only family dental coverage, the Board of Education will pay ninety percent (90%) of the cost for full-time employees.

The Board of Education will provide one hundred percent (100%) of the coverage if the husband and wife are both full-time employees of the district. Employees under this provision are not eligible to receive the inlieu of payment.

Employees and their dependents may not participate in family or single coverage if they are already participating in another health insurance plan. This provision excludes spouses and dependents of active military.

# B. In-lieu of Payment

In each plan year, full-time employees who are eligible for medical insurance, who have group healthcare elsewhere and who do not participate, shall receive a one-time in-lieu of payment in the amount of \$2,000. Payment shall be paid in January following the plan year. The payment will not be prorated for partial participation. The employee must work the full plan year to receive the payment.

In each plan year, if the district has a total of 15 or more employees who qualify for the plan but who do not participate, the in-lieu of payment will be \$3,000 paid to qualified employees who did not participate in the medical insurance. Payment shall be paid in January following the plan year. The payment will not be prorated for partial participation. The employee must work the full plan year to receive the payment.

In each plan year, if a full time employee who is eligible for medical insurance opts out, but retains dental insurance, the in-lieu of payment will be reduced by \$250.00.

# C. Miscellaneous

These policies shall be effective and implemented at the fall "open enrollment period" as established by the insuring agency. There shall be no increase in insurance coverage after the open enrollment period unless there is a "qualifying event."

A Flexible Savings Account (FSA) as governed by Section 125 of the Internal Revenue Act of 1978 shall be made available to bargaining unit members.

A life insurance policy shall be provided to each employee by the Board. The policy shall be provided in conjunction with the corresponding step as listed below:

Steps 0-5 shall be provided a \$50,000 policy. Steps 6-10 shall be provided a \$60,000 policy. Steps 11 and higher shall be provided a \$75,000 policy.

#### D. Termination of Benefits

Retiring employees who are enrolled in the medical and/or dental plan and who complete the contract year will be eligible for coverage through July 31<sup>st</sup> of their last contract year. Employees who resign for purposes other than retirement will be eligible for medical and dental coverage through August 31<sup>st</sup> of their last contract year provided they finish their contracted obligations.

# **INCLUSION PROCEDURE**

# A. Individualized Education Program (IEP) Team

The special education supervisor will try to schedule IEP meetings so that teachers whose duties would be impacted by the IEP will have the opportunity to participate. The teacher can also request a copy of the IEP and a meeting with the special education supervisor to review the IEP and accommodations necessary for the student. If any member of the team believes that services rendered to a student are inappropriate, the IEP team will be reconvened to discuss the placement and to reach a resolution.

# B. Training/Staff Development

The district shall annually provide training and/or staff development programs for those teachers impacted by an IEP to enable the teacher to implement the IEP.

# C. Specialized Health Care Procedures

Teachers shall not be required to perform medical procedures.

# D. Support and Custodial Services

The individual responsible for providing support and custodial services will be identified in the IEP. Any teacher who has a need for additional assistance/support in his/her classroom due to student needs may appeal to the building intervention assistance team.

# E. Release Time/Compensation

Each designated special education teacher/therapist shall be provided one release day for writing IEP's. Additional days may be granted with approval in advance from the building administrator for the purpose of completion of the IEP process provided the teacher/therapist demonstrates the necessity for such additional days.

#### F. Placement in Regular Education Classrooms

Special education teachers will work with their Intervention Assistance Team to develop the placement of special education students in regular classrooms.

Regular education teachers may schedule a meeting during the fifth week of each semester to review the individual placements.

# PLACEMENT ON SALARY SCHEDULE

# A. Increments for Experience Outside District

In computing years of service, credit may be given for each school year any teacher was in service as a regular teacher in any accredited school system to a maximum of fifteen (15) years, provided full credit for a minimum of five years of actual teaching and military experience is given as required by O.R.C. 3317.14.

# B. Additional Hours

Upon written verification submitted by the teacher to the Superintendent consisting of an official transcript or grade report followed in a timely manner by an official transcript, new contract status for pay purposes shall be considered within thirty (30) days using the criteria set forth below.

Each teacher who has completed the required semester hours which would qualify him/her for a higher salary bracket shall do so by September 15 or February 15 of any contract year. Fractional hours will not be rounded to the next highest number. For purposes of determining placement at BS+15, MS+15, MS+30, and MS+45, all hours must be obtained after the specified degree is obtained.

Hours must be related to education or subject related areas and/or course work approved by the LPDC. If there is a question, it is suggested that the Superintendent be contacted for approval prior to enrollment.

Approved salary adjustments filed between September 15 and February 15 will be placed on the appropriate salary schedule at the beginning of the second semester of the current school year.

Approved salary adjustments filed between February 15 and September 15 will be placed on the appropriate salary schedule at the beginning of the school year.

The Superintendent shall place the teacher in the proper salary bracket as of the applicable date in accordance with the training and experience before certifying such salary training and experience to the Treasurer.

#### Example:

Date Range for Credit Verification:	Pay Increases become Effective:
After February 15 to September 15	First Pay of First Semester
After September 15 to February 15	First Pay of Second Semester

# TEACHER WORKDAY AND WORK YEAR

The normal teacher workday shall be defined as a total of seven (7) hours and thirty (30) minutes inclusive of a thirty (30) minute duty-free lunch period; however, at the discretion of the Superintendent, this normal workday may be extended for faculty meetings and other school-related activities not to exceed a total of seventy-five (75) minutes twice a month.

The normal teacher work year shall be 186 contract days:

- Two workdays before school year. The first workday is intended to provide teachers with instructional worktime.
- 2. Two conference days
- 3. Five in-service days
- 4. One workday at end of school year
- 5. Up to five calamity days

Calamity Day Make Up Alternative: In the event of extended calamity days.

Teachers and Administration will collaboratively develop the Plan for Alternative Make-up of Calamity Days. In conjunction with this plan the District may assign alternate student instruction in the form of an e-day(s). The Superintendent will recommend the plan for Board approval prior to August 1 each year.

# PLANNING AND CONFERENCE TIME

Planning and conference time will be provided for each professional staff member. Each member shall have two hundred and fifteen (215) minutes each week for planning and conference.

If a teacher is directed by a school administrator to perform other duties on his/her regularly scheduled planning time, said teacher, if requested, shall receive compensation of \$25.00. Teachers may voluntarily exchange planning periods with no compensation required by the Board, provided the approval of the building principal is obtained.

When no substitute teacher is available for an elementary classroom, the students in this classroom may be divided among other teachers. Substitute teacher pay for this day will be divided equally among the affected teachers.

# LOCAL PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEES

# A. Structure

In accordance with O.R.C. 3319.22, Local Professional Development Committees (LPDC's) shall be established to review course work and other professional development activities completed by educators within the district for renewal of certificates or licenses.

#### 1. District LPDC

A District Local Professional Development Committee shall be established to decide equivalent activities toward Continuing Education Units (CEU's); develop a format for Individual Professional Development Plan Proposals for district-wide use; review and approve Individual Professional Plan Proposals by teachers and administrators; other appropriate district-wide program decisions; establish a district-wide Entry-Year Program pursuant to Department of Education Rules and Regulations 3301-24-4 review breaches of confidentiality of members in the District LPDAC; and to establish appropriate training for all members of District LPDC's.

# a. District LPDC Membership

The District LPDC shall be comprised of seven (7) members. Four (4) shall be teacher members appointed to the committee as per the BTA Constitution and By-Laws. Three (3) shall be administrators as appointed by the Superintendent. There will be a floating administrator from outside the Brookville Local Schools who will be used for both LPDC's when a majority of administrators is required.

#### b. Terms of LPDC Teacher Members

Teacher members shall serve a term of two (2) years in a staggered rotation as per the BTA Constitution and by-Laws.

# c. District LPDC Operating Procedures

Members of the District LPDC shall elect a Chairperson and Recorder at the first meeting. Additionally, the LPDC shall determine its operating procedures and meetings schedule by consensus. The LPDC shall meet quarterly during the school year, and also on an "as need to" basis. Meetings shall be held, when possible, to keep district costs at a minimum. Where consensus is not possible, a vote of simple majority of the full membership of the committee shall be required for action. Regarding Individual Professional Development Plans and committee responsibilities involved in this process, refer to Article C – Teacher Individual Professional Development Plan.

#### d. Administrative IPDP's

When administrator plans are being considered, the District LPDC will change composition to a majority of administrators according to law.

# 2. District LPDAC

There will be a Local Professional Development Appeals Committee for the Brookville School District. The District LPDAC shall review breaches of confidentiality of members in the District LPDC and establish and implement an appeals process.

## a. District LPDAC Membership

The District LPDAC shall be comprised of five (5) members. Three (3) shall be teacher members appointed to the committee as per the BTA Constitution and By-Laws. Two (2) shall be administrators as appointed by the Superintendent. There will be a floating Administrator from outside the Brookville Local Schools who will be used for LPDC and LPDAC when a majority of administrators is required.

#### b. Terms of LPDAC Teacher Members

Teacher members shall serve a term of two (2) years in a staggered rotation as per the BTA Constitution and By-Laws.

## c. District LPDAC Operating Procedures

Members of the District LPDAC shall elect a Chairperson and Recorder at the first meeting. Additionally, the LPDAC shall determine its operating procedures and meetings schedule by consensus. Meetings shall be held, when possible, to keep district costs at a minimum. Where consensus is not possible, a vote of simple majority of the full membership of the committee shall be required for action.

## d. Administrative Appeals

When administrator appeals are being considered, the District LPDAC will change composition to a majority of administrators according to law.

#### B. Removal of a Member

A member who is not fulfilling his/her duties on either the LPDC or LPDAC may be removed for just cause by a vote of a simple majority of all members of that committee. The decision of the committee will be final.

#### C. Teacher Individual Professional Development Plan

In accordance with O.R.C. 3319.22 and the Department of Education Regulation 3301-24-08, each educator who is to fulfill the license renewal or upgrade requirements is responsible for the submission of an Individual Professional Development Plan and subject to approval of the District LPDC. The plan shall be based on the needs of the educator, the students, the program, and the district. Individual Professional Development Plans and Proposals that are denied may be resubmitted with modifications or appealed. The application or appeal process must be done in person.

# 1. Return of the Plans and Proposals

The LPDC shall inform the educator (by returning the plan or proposal) in a timely manner after it is reviewed. If revisions are required, the plan or proposal must be resubmitted to the LPDC Chairperson within ten (10) working days.

The LPDC Recorder shall make copies of the plans or proposals, with revisions if necessary, send copies to the other LPDC Committee members, and return a copy to the educator.

Time logs may be required for certain activities.

## 2. Approval

Approval of the Individual Plan or Proposal shall require a majority vote of the LPDC.

#### 3. Documentation

It is the educator's responsibility to document the hours spent during the equivalent activities and submit them to the LPDC Chairperson upon completion, for verification or certificate or license renewal. All documentation will be held in the individual's personnel file.

## 4. Course Work

Official transcripts issued by the college or university shall be submitted to the LPDC Chairperson, upon completion, for verification or certificate or license renewal.

# D. Appeals Process

An educator may request a written explanation of the decision of the district to the LPDAC. Upon receipt of an appeal, the LPDAC shall meet within ten (10) days with the educator and representative(s) of the District LPDC. The appeal shall be filed with the Chairperson of the LPDAC. The decision of the LPDAC is not subject to the grievance procedure.

## E. Record Keeping

The Board shall be responsible for correspondence and record keeping for the District LPDC and LPDAC.

## F. Confidentiality

All members of the District LPDC and District LPDAC shall keep confidential all discussion, actions, materials, and other information. Breaches shall be reported to the opposite committee for appropriate action.

#### Compensation/Release Time

## A. Stipend and Hourly Compensation

Teacher members of the LPDC shall receive an annual stipend of \$300.00. A teacher member who is elected and serves as chairperson shall receive a stipend of \$500.00 (instead of \$300.00). In addition to the stipend, teacher members shall receive \$20.00 per hour for time spent in LPDC committee meetings.

#### B. Release Time

If release time can be arranged for both committees, committee meetings will be held during the school day. The Superintendent shall be notified of such meetings in a timely manner.

Course work, CEU classes, workshops, and/or equivalent activities related to primary responsibilities or current areas of certification/licensure are the primary options that can be used to satisfy the Ohio Department of Education (ODE) renewal requirements. Course work not directly related to the aforementioned may be used to satisfy ODE requirements, if it meets educationally academic standards.

Funding must go through established channels. Plans and activities approved by the LPDC does not imply that funding will be provided by the district.

Previously employed new hires who hold an Ohio Certificate/License and who have had course work and/or activities approved by their prior LPDC during their current renewal cycle shall have this course work and/or these activities approved by the Brookville Professional Development Committee when accompanied by supporting documentation.

#### **Procedure**

#### A. Committee Evaluation Process

LPDC Committee members shall evaluate each proposal in advance of meeting dates. During the meetings the Recorder shall compile final evaluations based upon discussions.

## B. Submission of Professional Development Plans

Individual Professional Development Plans shall be submitted on the IPDP forms provided.

This plan needs to be submitted and approved within completion of the first year of a new certificate/license.

Eight (8) copies shall be submitted to the LPDC Chairperson.

Any certified/licensed staff member may personally present an activity proposal by requesting an appointment at a scheduled LPDC meeting.

# C. Submission of Professional Development Plan Proposals

The detailed proposals, which outline the supporting activities, must be submitted at least thirty (30) days prior to the start of the course work, CEU, and/or activity. Exceptions may be granted on an individual basis with an explanation of why the thirty (30) day deadline should be waived.

Proposals must be submitted no later than two (2) weeks prior to the scheduled LPDC Review meeting.

Eight (8) copies shall be submitted to the LPDC Chairperson.

Any certified/licensed staff member may personally present an activity proposal by requesting an appointment at a regularly scheduled LPDC meeting.

If the plan/activities require any time away from the school day, prior approval from the building administrator is necessary before scheduling those activities or before completing the form.

# RESOLVING COMPLAINTS AGAINST TEACHERS

Community and school relations shall ideally reflect an attitude of mutual concern and cooperation in the constant attempt to provide the best learning situation for the students. However, complaints and misunderstandings are inevitable.

It is deemed most desirable that initial attempts to settle concerns/complaints against teachers should be made informally through personal, private conferences at the school level among teacher, pupil, parent, principal, and other appropriate staff personnel.

Formal complaints against teachers shall be handled as follows:

- A. If not resolved at informal level, the complaint must be put in writing. No official action can take place until the formal process is followed.
- B. The building principal will inform the teacher of the complaint directed toward him/her. The principal will hold a fact-finding meeting with the teacher.
- C. A meeting of the teacher, principal, and the complainant shall be attempted at a mutually convenient time to discuss the complaint. If complainant refuses the meeting it shall be noted by the principal. The teacher shall not be denied the right to attend the meeting but may be advised of possible confrontation and waive the right to appear.
- D. If the complaint is not resolved at that level, it may be appealed to the Superintendent of Schools or his representative.
- E. If it is still unresolved, the complainant may appeal to the Board of Education. However, the teacher must be so informed and have the opportunity to be present before the complaint is heard by the board.

## **GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE**

#### A. Definitions

- 1. A Grievance is a complaint involving the alleged violation, misinterpretation, or misapplication of one or more articles of this agreement.
- 2. A grievance shall mean the Association, a person, or group alleges that some violation, misinterpretation, or misapplication of the negotiated agreement has occurred. A grievance alleged to be a "group" grievance shall have arisen out of substantially similar circumstances affecting each member of said group. The Association, as an association, will be limited as a grievant to the articles comprising this agreement.
- 3. No grievance may be filed concerning a matter which has been made the subject of a charge with a State or Federal Agency or a complaint in a State of Federal Court of record.
- 4. Any action by the Board to terminate, renew, or not renew the contract of any professional staff member, whether such professional staff member is under a limited or continuing contract with the Board, or any recommendation by the Superintendent to terminate, renew, or not renew any such contract shall not be deemed a grievance and may not be processed as such.

#### B. Informal Procedure

The grievant shall discuss the grievance or complaint with the Principal or Assistant Principal who is directly concerned with the grievance in a face-to-face meeting. This shall be accomplished within forty (40) working days of the alleged grievance. A statement of the date and time of such meeting shall be signed by both parties and a copy shall be retained by each.

The Principal or Supervisor shall make his written response within five (5) working days of the face-to-face meeting.

#### C. Formal Procedure

#### 1. Step 1 - Principal

If a satisfactory solution is not effected, the grievant shall present his/her written grievance to the Principal or immediate Supervisor within fifteen (15) working days after the receipt of the response from the informal meeting. The written grievance must contain a concise statement of the grievance citing the situation giving rise to the grievance and stating the alleged violation or misinterpretation of the negotiated agreement. It must state the remedy sought and be signed by the grievant, or in the case of a group or Association grievance, by the Association President.

The Principal shall within ten (10) working days of the receipt of the grievance hold a Step I meeting to hear the grievance. The Principal or immediate Supervisor shall render his written response to the grievance within ten (10) working days of the Step 1 meeting. Copies of the response shall be forwarded to the grievant and the Superintendent.

## 2. Step 2 - Superintendent

If a satisfactory solution is not effected, the grievant shall present his/her written grievance to the Superintendent within ten (10) working days of the receipt of the Step 1 response.

The Superintendent shall within ten (10) working days of the receipt of the grievance hold a Step 2 meeting to hear the grievance. Within ten (10) working days of the Step 2 meeting the Superintendent shall issue his response in writing and copies shall be sent to the grievant.

#### 3. Step 3 – Board of Education

If a satisfactory solution is not effected, the grievant shall present his written grievance to the Board of Education within ten (10) working days of the receipt of the Step 2 response.

The Board of Education shall within twenty (20) calendar days of the receipt of the grievance hold a Step 3 meeting to hear the grievance. Within ten (10) working days of the Step 3 meeting the Board of Education shall issue its response in writing and copies shall be sent to the grievant.

#### 4. Step 4 – Arbitration

If the action taken in Step 3 by the Board of Education does not resolve the grievance to the satisfaction of the grievant or if no decision has been rendered by the Board within ten (10) working days, the Association shall notify the Board in writing of its intent to submit to arbitration within twenty (20) working days of receipt of the Step 3 response. The Association shall submit its demand for arbitration to the American Arbitration Association. The arbitration shall proceed under AAA rules and regulations.

In the event it is claimed by the Board that any matter filed as a grievance is not a grievance as defined under definition, such dispute, as such, may be appealed to arbitration with the arbitrator having the authority only to rule on the arbitrability of the dispute prior to convening a hearing on the merits of the dispute.

The Board and the Association shall equally share the fees and expenses of the arbitrator and any expenses incidental to the arbitration proceeding. Each, however, shall be responsible for any additional expense incurred including fees and expenses of its representatives.

The arbitrator will have authority to hold hearings and to confer with any parties deemed advisable in seeking to effect a decision to the Board and the Association.

Neither party will be permitted to assert in any arbitration proceeding any ground or to rely on any evidence not previously fully disclosed to the other party unless such evidence or information was not available prior to the arbitration.

The arbitrator shall not have the power to add to, subtract from, or modify the terms of this understanding and shall only have the authority to interpret the provisions of this understanding as the same relate to the specific grievance appealed to arbitration. No arbitrator may issue an award which is contrary to the Board's power to adopt budgets, establish funds or allocate resources to funds pursuant to Chapter 5705 of the Ohio Revised Code.

Upon acceptance by the arbitrator of such assignment, the arbitrator agrees to render a written decision within thirty (30) calendar days of the close of hearings on the matter. Both parties may mutually agree to extend the thirty (30) day period.

The decision of the arbitrator shall be binding in nature and the Board shall act on the recommendation of the arbitrator within twenty (20) working days of the receipt of the arbitration findings.

# D. Additional Information

- 1. The grievant, the Board, and/or the representative of either shall not be denied the right to advice, counsel, and/or representation at any level of the grievance procedure. Prior notice shall be rendered by either party if representatives are going to be present.
- 2. A grievance may be withdrawn at any level without prejudice or record.
- All records dealing with the processing of grievances shall be filed separately from the personnel files of the participants.
- 4. If the grievant does not abide by the time limits set forth, the grievant forfeits the right to continue to the next step of the grievance procedure.
- 5. If the administrator does not abide by the time limits set forth, the grievant filing the grievance may proceed to the next step.
- 6. There will be no reprisals taken against any participant in the grievance procedure by reason of such participation.
- 7. The number of days set forth in each step shall be considered a maximum. The time limits specified may, however, be extended by written agreement of the parties in interest.
- 8. All notices to the certified/licensed employee of hearings or disposition of grievance shall be hand delivered or mailed with return receipt.
- 9. In the event a grievance is filed after May 15<sup>th</sup> of any year and strict adherence to the time limits results in hardship to either party, both parties shall use their best efforts to process such grievance prior to the end of the school term or as soon thereafter as possible.
- 10. No certified/licensed employee shall file a grievance after submitting a letter of resignation.
- 11. Grievance forms (see Addendum B) will be available from the Grievance Chairperson or Association President. The Association has the right to be present at any grievance hearings and shall receive all documents regarding the grievance.

# **CONTRARY TO LAW**

If any provision of this agreement is found to be contrary to the law of the State of Ohio, the law of Ohio shall prevail and all remaining provisions of this agreement shall remain in effect for the duration of the agreement; in addition, negotiations for a successor agreement will be in keeping with procedures set forth in the Ohio Revised Code.

## **NEGOTIATIONS**

Either the Association or the Board may initiate negotiations. Once the request for negotiations has been made, the parties shall schedule their first negotiation session.

THE TEAMS OF EITHER SIDE SHALL BE COMPOSED OF NO MORE THAN FOUR (4) PERSONS EACH.

Negotiations for a successor contract shall begin with a Notice to Negotiate filed with the other party to this Agreement and with the State Employment Relations Board anytime between one hundred twenty (120) and sixty (60) days prior to the expiration date of this Agreement. Meeting dates shall be set by mutual agreement of the parties.

When either party determines that bargaining impasse exists, that party may call upon the mediation services of Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service to assist in resolving the impasse.

Provided at least ninety (90) days have passed since the Notice to Negotiate was delivered, provided this agreement has expired, provided no successor agreement has been ratified, and provided Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service mediation has been utilized, the Association may serve notice and carry out procedures in accordance with Ohio Revised Code 4117.

Agreement shall be considered reached only upon proper ratification by both the Board and the Association of the terms and conditions negotiated.

# **ELIGIBILITY FOR STUDENTS OF NONRESIDENT EMPLOYEES**

All nonresident employees of the Brookville Local School District shall have tuition-free status for their K-12 children and grandchildren and grandchildren shall be defined as natural children or grandchildren, stepchildren or step grandchildren, foster children or foster grandchildren, and children or grandchildren where the employee is the legal guardian) so long as the child or grandchild meets the criteria of tuition students as defined by the Brookville Local School District Administrative Guidelines (see below). Children and grandchildren of District employees may attend Brookville School tuition free, regardless of where they live.

Prior to enrolling his/her child(ren), the employee should contact the District office to verify his/her child(ren) or grandchild(ren) meet(s) all eligibility requirements.

# Brookville Local School District Administrative Guidelines Eligibility of Nonresident Student

- A. Nonresident admission on a tuition basis in grades K-12.
- B. Application for nonresident tuition students will be accepted only in the months of August and September and during the first week of the second semester. Nonresident tuition students must reapply each year for admission.
- C. The admission of nonresident students will be limited so that no additional staff and other local expenditures are required.
- D. Resident students will not be denied course selection opportunities as the result of admitting nonresident tuition students.
- E. Nonresident tuition students shall not be excluded on the basis of the child's race, creed, color, national origin, or ancestry.
- F. Nonresident tuition students will be admitted to this District upon receipt of proper application by parent or guardian and approval by the Superintendent.
- G. Proper application means a letter of verification from the principal and/or guidance counselor of the resident district stating that the student has not been a discipline/attendance/or behavior problem. Nonresident students who have experienced unsatisfactory attendance/discipline patterns or need special services will be denied.
- H. Nonresident tuition students are expected to achieve at the 2.00 grade point average or above. Verification of this capacity must be provided before acceptance. This may be in the form of an original copy of the last grade report or a letter of verification from the resident school.
- I. It shall be the responsibility of the parent/guardian to obtain a release from the resident district before the student is permitted to practice or participate in OSHAA sponsored athletic programs.
- J. Upon the death or retirement of the employee, children and grandchildren shall maintain their tuition-free status.

## **EXTRACURRICULAR**

Contracts for extracurricular/supplemental positions shall be issued for a specific period of time and shall expire at the end of their term without the necessity of notice of non-renewal.

A one percent (1%) additional percentage shall be paid to teachers when the uninterrupted service in a specific extracurricular position (i.e., Drama) exceeds nine (9) years inside the district. A teacher who qualifies for the additional one percent (1%) shall notify the Superintendent in writing upon return of his/her signed contract.

Should the Board decide to create the following positions, the following supplemental salaries shall be paid\*\*\*:

# % POSITION

17 Band Director

(Failure to function as Director with student musicians for the annual musical results in a 2% reduction in this category; in other words, this position would pay 15% as opposed to 17% of the BA base.)

Varsity Basketball - Head Boys Varsity Basketball - Head Girls Varsity Football - Head Varsity Wrestling - Head

12 JV/Assistant Basketball – Boys

JV/Assistant Basketball - Girls

Assistant Football (5)

Assistant Wrestling

Audiovisual

Baseball - Head

Cross Country - Head (Boys & Girls combined)

Drama Director - two productions per year

Intermediate School Head Site Manager - All

Soccer - Head Boys

Soccer - Head Girls

Softball - Head

Track - Head (Boys & Girls combined)

Volleyball - Head

Vocal Music

(Failure to function as Director with student vocalists for the annual musical results in a 2% reduction in this category; in other words, this position would pay 10% as opposed to 12% of the BA base.)

11 Swimming Head - (Boys & Girls)

Golf - Head Boys

Golf - Head Girls

Tennis - Head Boys

Tennis - Head Girls

- 10 Flexible Supplemental (b)
- 9 Journalism

9<sup>th</sup> Grade/ Assistant Basketball- if no 9<sup>th</sup> grade team, then assistant to JV at level 4 Assistant Wrestling

- Assistant Band Director
  Assistant Varsity/Reserve Volleyball
  Seventh Grade Basketball Head Boys
  Eighth Grade Basketball Head Boys
  Seventh Grade Basketball Head Girls
  Eighth Grade Basketball Head Girls
  Seventh and Eighth Grade Football Head
  Seventh and Eighth Grade Wrestling Head
  Winter Guard Advisor
- Assistant Varsity/Reserve Baseball
  Assistant Varsity/Reserve Soccer Boys
  Assistant Varsity/Reserve Soccer Girls
  Assistant Varsity/Reserve Softball
  Assistant Varsity Track (3)
  Seventh and Eighth Grade Assistant Football (3)
  Seventh and Eighth Grade Assistant Wrestling
  Seventh and Eighth Grade Cross Country Head
  Seventh and Eighth Grade Softball Head
  Seventh and Eighth Grade Track Head Boys
  Seventh and Eighth Grade Track Head Girls
  Seventh Grade Volleyball Head
  Eighth Grade Volleyball Head
  Assistant Swimming (Boys & Girls)
- Assistant Cross Country
  Assistant Golf
  Assistant Varsity/Reserve Tennis Coach Boys
  Assistant Varsity/Reserve Tennis Coach Girls
  Cheerleader Coach High School Basketball
  Cheerleader Coach High School Football
  Color Guard Advisor
  Safety Patrol
- Eleventh Grade Class Advisor
   High School Site Manager Boys Soccer
   High School Site Manager Girls Soccer

#### 4 Assistant Baseball

Assistant Softball

Assistant Volleyball

Assistant Seventh and Eighth Grade School Track (Boys & Girls combined) – up to (2)

Assistant Varsity Basketball Coach - Girls

Assistant Varsity Basketball Coach - Boys

Cheerleader Coach - Seventh and Eighth Grade Basketball

Cheerleader Coach - Seventh and Eighth Grade Football

High School Student Council Advisor

High School Site Manager - Boys Basketball

High School Site Manager - Girls Basketball

Fall Assistant Site Manager Intermediate School

Intermediate School Student Council Advisor

Intermediate School Yearbook Advisor

Muse Machine Advisor

Ninth Grade Class Advisor

S.A.D.D. Advisor (with After Prom)

Tenth Grade Class Advisor

Twelfth Grade Class Advisor

Varsity "B" Advisor

# 3 Art Club Advisor – (BHS)

High School Site Manager – Football

High School Site Manager - Volleyball

Honor Society Advisor

Modern Language Club Advisor

Washington DC Field Trip Coordinator

Weight Room Supervisor - Fall

Weight Room Supervisor - Winter

Weight Room Supervisor - Spring

Weight Room Supervisor - Summer

Science/Ecology Club Advisor – (BHS)

#### 2 Builders Club Advisor

Debate Team Advisor

Drama - Set Construction (1 or 2 persons)

**Future Teachers Advisor** 

K-Kids Advisor

Key Club Advisor

Link Crew Advisor

Marching Band Assistants Fall – up to (2)

Power of the Pen Advisor

Pilot program Advisors (a)

BIS Art Club Advisor

Science/Ecology Club Advisor (2 positions, BIS, BES)

Junior Great Books (BES)

Relay for Life (BHS)

Coding Club (up to 4 persons)

The salary for year-long activities shall be paid in three (3) equal installments as follows, provided the required form is completed, verified, and timely submitted to the Treasurer: (1) first pay in December, (2) second pay in March, and (3) first pay in June.

All seasonal activities completed before December 1 shall be paid in two (2) equal installments as follows, provided the required form is completed, verified, and timely submitted to the Treasurer: (1) approximately ½ way through the season, and (2) first pay in December.

All seasonal activities completed before March 1 shall be paid in two (2) equal installments as follows, provided the required form is completed, verified, and timely submitted to the Treasurer: (1) approximately ½ way through the season, and (2) second pay in March.

All seasonal activities completed before the last day of school shall be paid in two (2) equal installments as follows, provided the required form is completed, verified, and timely submitted to the Treasurer: (1) approximately ½ way through the season, and (2) first pay in June.

In the event a seasonal activity is not completed by the date set forth above due to participation in state playoffs or state tournaments, then the salary for such activity shall be paid within thirty (30) days after the completed form for such activity is verified and submitted to the Treasurer.

If the Board cannot offer the pupil activity at all, the supplemental contract will be VOID. Employee further understands that if the Board can offer only a part of the pupil activity, Employee will be paid a prorated portion of the stated rate/stipend based on the proportion of work duties that are able to be performed and that are performed by employee.

Extracurricular salaries shall be calculated by utilizing the BA zero step of the current salary schedule.

Written verification shall be given by the person under contract to his or her supervisor who shall promptly forward proper verification to the Treasurer. This verification shall indicate that the contractual conditions affecting the position have been completed by the holder of the position, but shall be limited to: (1) the collection of all uniforms, (2) the preparation of materials necessary for awards, and (3) the completion of an inventory.

Any coach failing to participate in a required summer program shall have a reduction of 20% of the amount paid for the supplemental contract.

- (a) This category is intended to allow flexibility for developing new student extracurricular programs. Approval of a new extracurricular program does not necessarily mean that the corresponding advisor position is a paid position; the advisor for any new program shall not be deemed to hold a paid position unless expressly approved as a paid position by the Building Administrator and the Board.
- (b) Flexible supplemental- this supplemental may be filled by and at the discretion of the Superintendent based on the needs of the district. Superintendent can break down the 10% as he/she sees fit.

## **CONTRIBUTIONS TO STRS**

The Board agrees with the Association to pick up (assume and pay) contributions to the State Teachers Retirement System on behalf of the members in the bargaining unit on the following terms and conditions:

- A. An amount equal to 2% of the member's total contribution will be picked up and paid on behalf of each bargaining unit member.
- B. The board shall compute and remit all applicable contributions to STRS based upon annual salaries and any other earned compensation.
- C. The pick-up percentage shall apply uniformly to all members of the bargaining unit and no member covered by this provision shall have the option to elect a wage or benefit in lieu of the employer pick up.
- D. Said pick-up shall not result in any additional cost to the Board.

# Brookville Schools Salary Schedule and Index\* July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2024

Step	ВА	BA+15	Masters	MA +15	MA +30	MA +45	MA +60
0	\$44,439	\$46,503	\$48,566	\$49,598	\$50,629	\$51,661	\$52,692
	1.0000	1.0464	1.0929	1.1161	1.1393	1.1625	1.1857
1	\$45,368	\$47,534	\$49,701	\$50,773	\$51,846	\$52,919	\$53,991
	1.0209	1.0696	1.1184	1.1425	1.1667	1.1908	1.2149
2	\$46,296	\$48,566	\$50,835	\$51,950	\$53,063	\$54,177	\$55,292
	1.0418	1.0929	1.1439	1.1690	1.1941	1.2191	1.2442
3	\$47,224	\$49,598	\$51,970	\$53,125	\$54,280	\$55,435	\$56,591
	1.0627	1.1161	1.1695	1.1954	1.2214	1.2474	1.2734
4	\$48,153	\$50,629	\$53,105	\$54,302	\$55,497	\$56,694	\$57,891
	1.0836	1.1393	1.1950	1.2219	1.2488	1.2758	1.3027
5	\$50,010	\$52,692	\$55,374	\$56,654	\$57,933	\$59,211	\$60,490
	1.1254	1.1857	1.2461	1.2749	1.3036	1.3324	1.3612
6	\$51,866	\$54,756	\$57,644	\$59,005	\$60,367	\$61,729	\$63,091
	1.1671	1.2321	1.2971	1.3278	1.3584	1.3891	1.4197
7	\$53,724	\$56,818	\$59,913	\$61,357	\$62,802	\$64,246	\$65,690
	1.2089	1.2785	1.3482	1.3807	1.4132	1.4457	1.4782
8	\$55,580	\$58,881	\$62,183	\$63,709	\$65,236	\$66,762	\$68,289
	1.2507	1.3250	1.3993	1.4336	1.4680	1.5023	1.5367
9	\$57,437	\$60,944	\$64,452	\$66,061	\$67,670	\$69,279	\$70,889
	1.2925	1.3714	1.4503	1.4865	1.5228	1.5590	1.5952
10	\$59,293	\$63,008	\$66,722	\$68,413	\$70,105	\$71,797	\$73,488
	1.3343	1.4178	1.5014	1.5395	1.5776	1.6156	1.6537
11	\$61,151	\$65,071	\$68,991	\$70,765	\$72,539	\$74,314	\$76,088
	1.3761	1.4643	1.5525	1.5924	1.6323	1.6723	1.7122
12	\$63,008	\$67,134	\$71,261	\$73,117	\$74,973	\$76,831	\$78,688
	1.4178	1.5107	1.6035	1.6453	1.6871	1.7289	1.7707
13	\$64,864	\$69,197	\$73,529	\$75,469	\$77,409	\$79,347	\$81,287
	1.4596	1.5571	1.6546	1.6982	1.7419	1.7855	1.8292
14	\$66,722	\$71,261	\$75,800	\$77,821	\$79,843	\$81,864	\$83,886
	1.5014	1.6035	1.7057	1.7512	1.7967	1.8422	1.8877
15	\$68,578	\$73,324	\$78,068	\$80,173	\$82,277	\$84,382	\$86,487
	1.5432	1.6500	1.7567	1.8041	1.8514	1.8988	1.9462
20	\$70,435	\$75,387	\$80,338	\$82,525	\$84,712	\$86,899	\$89,086
	1.5850	1.6964	1.8078	1.8570	1.9062	1.9555	2.0047
25	\$71,363	\$76,418	\$81,472	\$83,701	\$85,929	\$88,158	\$90,385
	1.6058	1.7196	1.8333	1.8835	1.9336	1.9838	2.0339
29	\$72,424	\$77,588	\$82,795	\$85,093	\$87,390	\$89,693	\$91,973
	1.6297	1.7459	1.8631	1.9148	1.9665	2.0183	2.0696

Note: Column 7 is grandfathered and will sunset once those that are currently in column 7 leave the employ of the district.

<sup>\*</sup>Certificated Staff will receive step advancement for the 2023/2024 contract year.

Brookville Schools
Salary Schedule and Index\*
July 1, 2024 - June 30, 2025

Step	BA	BA+15	Masters	MA +15	MA +30	MA +45	MA +60
0	\$45,773	\$47,898	\$50,023	\$51,085	\$52,148	\$53,211	\$54,273
	1.0000	1.0464	1.0929	1.1161	1.1393	1.1625	1.1857
1	\$46,729	\$48,960	\$51,192	\$52,296	\$53,402	\$54,507	\$55,611
	1.0209	1.0696	1.1184	1.1425	1.1667	1.1908	1.2149
2	\$47,685	\$50,023	\$52,360	\$53,508	\$54,655	\$55,802	\$56,950
	1.0418	1.0929	1.1439	1.1690	1.1941	1.2191	1.2442
3	\$48,641	\$51,085	\$53,529	\$54,719	\$55,909	\$57,099	\$58,288
	1.0627	1.1161	1.1695	1.1954	1.2214	1.2474	1.2734
4	\$49,598	\$52,148	\$54,698	\$55,931	\$57,162	\$58,395	\$59,628
	1.0836	1.1393	1.1950	1.2219	1.2488	1.2758	1.3027
5	\$51,510	\$54,273	\$57,035	\$58,353	\$59,671	\$60,988	\$62,305
	1.1254	1.1857	1.2461	1.2749	1.3036	1.3324	1.3612
6	\$53,422	\$56,398	\$59,373	\$60,775	\$62,178	\$63,581	\$64,983
	1.1671	1.2321	1.2971	1.3278	1.3584	1.3891	1.4197
7	\$55,336	\$58,522	\$61,710	\$63,197	\$64,686	\$66,173	\$67,661
	1.2089	1.2785	1.3482	1.3807	1.4132	1.4457	1.4782
8	\$57,248	\$60,647	\$64,048	\$65,620	\$67,193	\$68,765	\$70,338
	1.2507	1.3250	1.3993	1.4336	1.4680	1.5023	1.5367
9	\$59,160	\$62,773	\$66,385	\$68,043	\$69,700	\$71,358	\$73,015
	1.2925	1.3714	1.4503	1.4865	1.5228	1.5590	1.5952
10	\$61,072	\$64,898	\$68,723	\$70,465	\$72,208	\$73,950	\$75,692
	1.3343	1.4178	1.5014	1.5395	1.5776	1.6156	1.6537
11	\$62,986	\$67,023	\$71,060	\$72,888	\$74,716	\$76,543	\$78,371
	1.3761	1.4643	1.5525	1.5924	1.6323	1.6723	1.7122
12	\$64,898	\$69,148	\$73,398	\$75,311	\$77,223	\$79,136	\$81,048
	1.4178	1.5107	1.6035	1.6453	1.6871	1.7289	1.7707
13	\$66,810	\$71,273	\$75,735	\$77,733	\$79,731	\$81,728	\$83,725
	1.4596	1.5571	1.6546	1.6982	1.7419	1.7855	1.8292
14	\$68,723	\$73,398	\$78,073	\$80,156	\$82,238	\$84,320	\$86,403
	1.5014	1.6035	1.7057	1.7512	1.7967	1.8422	1.8877
15	\$70,635	\$75,524	\$80,410	\$82,578	\$84,745	\$86,913	\$89,081
	1.5432	1.6500	1.7567	1.8041	1.8514	1.8988	1.9462
20	\$72,548	\$77,649	\$82,749	\$85,001	\$87,254	\$89,506	\$91,758
	1.5850	1.6964	1.8078	1.8570	1.9062	1.9555	2.0047
25	\$73,504	\$78,710	\$83,916	\$86,212	\$88,507	\$90,802	\$93,097
	1.6058	1.7196	1.8333	1.8835	1.9336	1.9838	2.0339
29	\$74,597	\$79,915	\$85,279	\$87,646	\$90,012	\$92,384	\$94,732
	1.6297	1.7459	1.8631	1.9148	1.9665	2.0183	2.0696

Note: Column 7 is grandfathered and will sunset once those that are currently in column 7 leave the employ of the district

<sup>\*</sup>Certificated Staff will receive step advancement for the 2024/2025 contract year.

Brookville Schools
Salary Schedule and Index\*
July 1, 2025 - June 30, 2026

Step	ВА	BA+15	Masters	MA +15	MA +30	MA +45	MA +60
0	\$47,146	\$49,335	\$51,524	\$52,618	\$53,712	\$54,807	\$55,901
	1.0000	1.0464	1.0929	1.1161	1.1393	1.1625	1.1857
1	\$48,130	\$50,429	\$52,728	\$53,865	\$55,004	\$56,142	\$57,280
	1.0209	1.0696	1.1184	1.1425	1.1667	1.1908	1.2149
2	\$49,115	\$51,524	\$53,931	\$55,113	\$56,295	\$57,476	\$58,659
	1.0418	1.0929	1.1439	1.1690	1.1941	1.2191	1.2442
3	\$50,100	\$52,618	\$55,135	\$56,360	\$57,586	\$58,812	\$60,037
	1.0627	1.1161	1.1695	1.1954	1.2214	1.2474	1.2734
4	\$51,086	\$53,712	\$56,339	\$57,609	\$58,877	\$60,147	\$61,417
	1.0836	1.1393	1.1950	1.2219	1.2488	1.2758	1.3027
5	\$53,056	\$55,901	\$58,746	\$60,104	\$61,461	\$62,817	\$64,174
	1.1254	1.1857	1.2461	1.2749	1.3036	1.3324	1.3612
6	\$55,025	\$58,090	\$61,154	\$62,598	\$64,043	\$65,488	\$66,933
	1.1671	1.2321	1.2971	1.3278	1.3584	1.3891	1.4197
7	\$56,996	\$60,278	\$63,561	\$65,093	\$66,627	\$68,159	\$69,691
	1.2089	1.2785	1.3482	1.3807	1.4132	1.4457	1.4782
8	\$58,965	\$62,467	\$65,970	\$67,589	\$69,209	\$70,828	\$72,448
	1.2507	1.3250	1.3993	1.4336	1.4680	1.5023	1.5367
9	\$60,935	\$64,656	\$68,377	\$70,084	\$71,791	\$73,498	\$75,206
	1.2925	1.3714	1.4503	1.4865	1.5228	1.5590	1.5952
10	\$62,904	\$66,845	\$70,785	\$72,579	\$74,375	\$76,169	\$77,963
	1.3343	1.4178	1.5014	1.5395	1.5776	1.6156	1.6537
11	\$64,875	\$69,034	\$73,192	\$75,075	\$76,957	\$78,840	\$80,722
	1.3761	1.4643	1.5525	1.5924	1.6323	1.6723	1.7122
12	\$66,845	\$71,223	\$75,600	\$77,570	\$79,539	\$81,510	\$83,480
	1.4178	1.5107	1.6035	1.6453	1.6871	1.7289	1.7707
13	\$68,814	\$73,411	\$78,007	\$80,065	\$82,123	\$84,179	\$86,237
	1.4596	1.5571	1.6546	1.6982	1.7419	1.7855	1.8292
14	\$70,785	\$75,600	\$80,416	\$82,560	\$84,705	\$86,850	\$88,995
	1.5014	1.6035	1.7057	1.7512	1.7967	1.8422	1.8877
15	\$72,754	\$77,789	\$82,823	\$85,056	\$87,288	\$89,521	\$91,754
	1.5432	1.6500	1.7567	1.8041	1.8514	1.8988	1.9462
20	\$74,724	\$79,978	\$85,231	\$87,551	\$89,871	\$92,191	\$94,511
	1.5850	1.6964	1.8078	1.8570	1.9062	1.9555	2.0047
25	\$75,709	\$81,071	\$86,434	\$88,798	\$91,162	\$93,526	\$95,889
	1.6058	1.7196	1.8333	1.8835	1.9336	1.9838	2.0339
29	\$76,835	\$82,313	\$87,837	\$90,275	\$92,712	\$95,155	\$97,574
	1.6297	1.7459	1.8631	1.9148	1.9665	2.0183	2.0696

Note: Column 7 is grandfathered and will sunset once those that are currently in column 7 leave the employ of the district

<sup>\*</sup>Certificated Staff will receive step advancement for the 2025/2026 contract year.

FOR:

Brookville Local School District

Brookville Teachers' Association

Superintendent

President

Negotiations Charperson

Board of Education President